
STATE OF OKLAHOMA 

DISTRICT ATTORNEYS COUNCIL 
421 NW 13

TH
 ST, SUITE 290  OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73103-3710 

 
EXECUTIVE FINANCE GRANTS VICTIMS MIS 

405-264-5000 405-264-5004 405-264-5008 405-264-5006 405-264-5002 

FAX 405-264-5099 405-264-5099 405-264-5095 405-264-5097 405-264-5099 

 

SUZANNE McCLAIN ATWOOD 
Executive Coordinator 

 
TRENT H. BAGGETT 

Assistant Executive Coordinator 

 

 

 

 

1 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

JANUARY 19, 2017, AT 10:00 A.M. 
DISTRICT ATTORNEYS COUNCIL 
421 N.W. 13TH STREET, SUITE 125 

OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 

 
 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

1) CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL – MIKE FIELDS 
 
The meeting was called to order by Mike Fields at 10:03 a.m.  The following Council members 
were present:  District Attorney Mike Fields, District Attorney Kevin Buchanan, District Attorney 
Greg Mashburn, District Attorney David Prater and First Assistant Attorney General Cara Rodri-
guez.  It was noted there was a quorum present. 
 
2) STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH OPEN MEETING ACT – MIKE FIELDS 

 
It was noted the agenda had been properly posted and the office of the Secretary of State notified. 
Written notice was provided to the Secretary of State on December 15, 2016.  Annie Daniel posted 
the amended agenda on January 16, 2017, at 8:36 a.m. at Council Headquarters, 421 N.W. 13th 
Street, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma.  

 
3) INTRODUCTIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS – SUZANNE MCCLAIN ATWOOD 
 
Suzanne McClain Atwood had no announcements. 
 
The following District Attorneys were present: Brian Hermanson, Richard Smothermon, Mike 
Boring, Chris Boring, Rob Barris, Max Cook, Ken Darby, Kenny Wright, Steve Kunzweiler, Laura 
Austin Thomas, Angela Marsee, and Jason Hicks, who entered the meeting at 10:20 a.m.  Others in 
attendance: Tyler Talley, eCapitol. The following DAC staff were present: Suzanne McClain At-
wood, Bud Webster, Annie Daniel, Trent Baggett, David Bebber, Amy Bruce, Suzanne Breedlove, 



 

2 

Stephanie Lowery and Elizabeth Base.  Lori McDougal and Brenda Hendrickson with District 9 
also attended the meeting. 
 
4) APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF DECEMBER 15, 2016, REGULAR MEETING – MIKE FIELDS 
 
A motion was made by Kevin Buchanan and seconded by Greg Mashburn to approve the minutes 
from the December 15, 2016 regular meeting.  The motion carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Mashburn, Prater, Rodriguez 
NAY: None 
ABST:  None 

 
5) DISTRICT 9 REQUEST FOR EXPERT WITNESS FEE – LAURA AUSTIN THOMAS 
 
Laura Austin Thomas informed the Council that she was modifying her request from the amount 
of $19,124 to the presumptive rate of $3,500.  During discussion, it was noted that Ms. Atwood 
could presumptively approve the request in the amount of $3,500.   
 
David Prater made a motion to deny the request but the motion died for lack of a second.  Kevin 
Buchanan then moved to not consider the claim and allow the Executive Coordinator to approve 
it pursuant to the presumptive guidelines.  Greg Mashburn seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Mashburn, Rodriguez 
NAY: Prater 
ABST:  None 

 
6) FY 2018 BUDGET REQUEST – SUZANNE MCCLAIN ATWOOD 
 
Suzanne McClain Atwood informed the Council that the FY18 budget request includes $11 million 
more than what was requested for FY17 in critical needs as submitted by the District Attorneys.  
The amount of the request is $11,472,284.   
 
Ms. Atwood advised she and Chairman Fields met with House Subcommittee Chair Kevin Calvey, 
who asked detailed questions about travel expenses for the District Attorney system.  Ms. Atwood 
advised that travel comprises approximately ½ of 1% of the budget, a very small number.  She was 
asked if it was possible to cut the requirement of CLE credits for District Attorneys in FY18 to save 
money.   
 
No action was taken. 
 

7) REVIEW OF DISTRICT ATTORNEY APPOINTMENTS – SUZANNE MCCLAIN ATWOOD 
 

Ms. Atwood presented the Council with a document that includes each advisory board or com-
mittee with representatives of the District Attorneys Council.  Ms. Atwood asks that each District 
Attorney please review this document and advise if we should request reports from any of the rep-
resentatives listed. 
 
No action was taken. 
 
8) AMENDED EXECUTIVE ORDER 2015-07 – SUZANNE MCCLAIN ATWOOD 
 



 

3 

Ms. Atwood reviewed the amended Executive Order 2015-07, which places the District Attorneys 
Council under the purview of the cabinet position of Secretary of State.  Formerly, we were under 
the purview of the Secretary of Safety and Security.  Ms. Atwood advised she had spoken with Sec-
retary Mike Hunter, who advised there were no changes to our processes relating to hiring freezes 
and the travel approvals. 
 
No action was taken. 
 
9) UPDATE, REPORT AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON THE FBI CJIS NATIONAL DATA EX-

CHANGE PROGRAM – DAVID BEBBER 
 
At the September Council meeting, the Council approved DAC to begin work on developing a sys-
tem-wide participation in the N-Dex program.  Since then, David Bebber has learned that Just-
Ware data shared submitted to OSBI is shared with the FBI, but not with the N-Dex divisionMr. 
Bebber requested the Council approve sharing the information directly with the N-Dex division.  
A motion was made by David Prater and seconded by Greg Mashburn to approve disclosure of the 
OSBI submission data to the FBI N-Dex division. 
 
The motion carried as follows: 
 

 AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Mashburn, Prater, Rodriguez 
NAY: None 
ABST:  None 

  
10) JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT BRIEFING – STEPHANIE LOWERY 

 
Stephanie Lowery presented the Council with information regarding the Justice Assistance Grant 
(JAG).  The JAG grants for 2017-2018 will be for a 2-year period.  The grant period will run from 
7/1/2017 – 6/30/2019.  
 
This will be a highly competitive year.  DAC has $3,630,901 to award for the 2-year period.  That is 
a cut of $482,464 per year compared to the award made in 2016.  This cut equates to approximate-
ly 3.5 JAG funded programs.  We currently fund 16 projects: 13 DA task forces, 2 DA gang prosecu-
tion units, and 1 DOC RSAT program.   
 
The 2017-2018 JAG applications open in OKGrants February 3 and close at 11:59 p.m. on March 
10.  It was emphasized that applicants should review their 2016 staff scores for comments in 
OKGrants before beginning to write their 2017 applications.  It was also mentioned that Project 
Narratives/Descriptions and Goals/Objectives are very important in scoring applications.  Finally, 
Ms. Lowery reminded the Council that the DA Task Forces had a quarterly meeting January 25, 
2017 and one of the topics is grant writing tools and tips to be presented by DAC staff.   
 
No action was taken. 
 
11) HISTORICAL PICTURE OF OKLAHOMA CRIME VICTIMS COMPENSATION PROGRAM 

– SUZANNE BREEDLOVE 
 

Suzanne Breedlove presented the Council with a historical overview of the Victims Compensation 
Assessments (VCA).  The charts she presented show a steady decline in VCA revenue, resulting in 
less state funds for payment of victims compensation claims.  Ms. Breedlove pointed out that this 
decline has been evident for the past several years and needs to be addressed before the situation 
becomes critical.  She expressed concern that added fees and costs, in addition to the recent 15% 



 

4 

surcharge on all collections by the judiciary, may be the cause of the reduction in VCA while most 
judges continue to assess only the minimum VCA permitted by statute.  She shared that 
administrative costs have decreased over the years, so that does not explain the decrease in state 
VCA funds available to award to victims.  Steve Kunzweiler asked Ms. Breedlove if she could 
provide analysis for Tulsa County to see if there is a reduction in VCA.  Ms. Breedlove stated that 
she would be happy to provide statistics on all districts and would present the information at the 
February Council meeting. 
 
No action was taken. 
 
12) UNINSURED VEHICLE ENFORCEMENT DIVERSION PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION – 

MIKE BORING 

 
Mike Boring informed the Council that he and the purchasing review team are currently in the 
midst of the purchasing process and are following up with the interviews that were conducted.  
They hope to have a potential vendor selected for consideration by February 6.  He will have more 
details for the Council at the February meeting.  Chris Boring asked if there was a goal for 
implementation.  Mike Boring said the goal is to have this program implemented by the end of 
2017 or the beginning of 2018. 
 
No action was taken. 

 
13) UPDATE ON LAWSUITS – ELIZABETH BASE 

 

 Jeanne Lester v. State of Oklahoma, ex rel., The Department of Human Services, and 
the District Attorneys Council 
 

 Richard Stevens v. State of Oklahoma, ex rel., The Department of Human Services, 
and the District Attorneys Council  

 

 Shawn L. Norman v. State of Oklahoma, ex rel., The Department of Human Services, 
and the District Attorneys Council 

 
Elizabeth Base updated the Council on the pending lawsuits that have been filed as a result of the 
closing of the Norman child support enforcement office.  The Attorney General’s office has filed a 
motion to dismiss on behalf of the DAC in all three cases.  The plaintiffs’ attorney has only re-
sponded to the motion to dismiss in the Lester case.  The Attorney General’s office is in the pro-
cess of getting all three cases on a hearing docket to move them along.  Ms. Base will continue to 
update the Executive Coordinator as needed. 
 
No action was taken. 
 
14) PROPOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO 25 O.S. 307(B)(1) TO DISCUSS THE 

APPOINTMENT AND SALARY OF THE POSITION OF EXECUTIVE COORDINATOR – 
MIKE FIELDS 

 
15) VOTE TO CONVENE IN EXECUTIVE SESSION – MIKE FIELDS 
 
David Prater made a motion to move into Executive Session.  Greg Mashburn seconded the mo-
tion.  The motion carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Mashburn, Prater, Rodriguez 



 

5 

NAY: None 
ABST:  None 

 
At this time, everybody left the meeting except the members of the Council. 
 
16) VOTE TO ACKNOWLEDGE COUNCIL’S RETURN TO OPEN SESSION – MIKE FIELDS 

 
David Prater made a motion to convene in Open Session, to approve the minutes as reviewed in 
Executive Session and to order the minutes sealed.  Kevin Buchanan seconded the motion.  The 
motion carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Mashburn, Prater, Rodriguez 
NAY: None 
ABST:  None 

 
17) DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION WITH RESPECT TO THE ABOVE EXECUTIVE 
SESSION REGARDING THE SELECTION AND SALARY OF THE POSITION OF EXECUTIVE 
COORDINATOR – MIKE FIELDS 
 
Mike Fields made a motion to appoint Trent Baggett to position of Executive Coordinator with a 
start date of March 1, 2017 and with a salary commensurate to that of a District Attorney, inclusive 
of longevity.  Kevin Buchanan seconded the motion.  The motion carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Mashburn, Prater, Rodriguez 
NAY: None 
ABST:  None 

 
18) REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE COORDINATOR – SUZANNE MCCLAIN ATWOOD 
 
Suzanne McClain Atwood informed the Council that a Senate Budget Hearing was scheduled for 
January 31st at 3:15 p.m. in Room 230 at the Capitol.  Any District Attorney who wishes to attend is 
welcome. 
 
No action was taken. 
 
19) NEW BUSINESS NOT KNOWN 24 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING – MIKE FIELDS 
 
None. 
 
20) ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion to adjourn at 11:23 a.m. was made by Greg Mashburn and seconded by Kevin Buchanan.  
The motion carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Mashburn, Prater, Rodriguez 
NAY: None 
ABST:  None 

 



STATE OF OKLAHOMA 

DISTRICT ATTORNEYS COUNCIL 
421 NW 13

TH
 ST, SUITE 290  OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73103-3710 

 
EXECUTIVE FINANCE GRANTS VICTIMS MIS 

405-264-5000 405-264-5004 405-264-5008 405-264-5006 405-264-5002 

FAX 405-264-5099 405-264-5099 405-264-5095 405-264-5097 405-264-5099 

 

SUZANNE McCLAIN ATWOOD 
Executive Coordinator 

 
TRENT H. BAGGETT 

Assistant Executive Coordinator 

 

 

 

 

1 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

DECEMBER 15, 2016, AT 10:00 A.M. 
DISTRICT ATTORNEYS COUNCIL 
421 N.W. 13TH STREET, SUITE 125 

OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 

 
 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

1) CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order by Mike Fields at 10:01 a.m.  The following Council members 
were present:  District Attorney Mike Fields, District Attorney Kevin Buchanan, District Attorney 
David Prater (left the meeting at 11:10 a.m.), First Assistant Attorney General Cara Rodriguez, and 
District Attorney Greg Mashburn.  It was noted there was a quorum present. 
 
2) STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH OPEN MEETING ACT 

 
It was noted the agenda had been properly posted and the office of the Secretary of State notified. 
Written notice was provided to the Secretary of State on November 10, 2015.  Annie Daniel posted 
the amended agenda on October 13, 2016, at 10:30 a.m. at Council Headquarters, 421 N.W. 13th 
Street, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma.  

 
3) INTRODUCTIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Suzanne McClain Atwood introduced and welcomed Cara Rodriguez, First Assistant Attorney 
General.  Ms. Rodriguez will be representing Attorney General Scott Pruitt at future Council 
Meetings. 
 
The following District Attorneys were present: Brian Hermanson, Chris Boring, Chuck Sullivan, 
Jeff Smith, Richard Smothermon, Mike Boring, Rob Barris, Matt Ballard and Rex Duncan.  The 
following District Attorneys entered the meeting after announcements had been made: Emily 
Redman, Ken Darby, and Fred Smith. Others in attendance: Tyler Talley, eCapitol. The following 



 

2 

DAC staff were present: Suzanne McClain Atwood, Bud Webster, Annie Daniel, Trent Baggett, 
David Bebber, Tina Harman, Meagan Conway and Elizabeth Base (who entered the meeting after 
announcements). 
 
4) APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 2, 2016, REGULAR MEETING 
 
A motion was made by Greg Mashburn and seconded by Kevin Buchanan to approve the minutes 
from the November 2, 2016 regular meeting.  The motion carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Prater, Rodriguez, Mashburn 
NAY: None 
ABST:  None 

 
5) REVIEW AND POSSIBLE ACTION FOR 2017 MEETING DATES 
 
Suzanne McClain Atwood presented the 2017 schedule for Council meetings.  The only deviation 
from the third Thursday in each month is in March, which was rescheduled to avoid conflicting 
with Spring Break.  A motion was made by David Prater and seconded by Kevin Buchanan to ap-
prove the 2017 meeting schedule.  The motion carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Prater, Rodriguez, Mashburn 
NAY: None 
ABST:  None 

 
6) DISTRICT 21 REQUEST FOR EXPERT WITNESS FEE 
 
Greg Mashburn gave some background on his request for payment of expert witness fee for Dr. 
Steffan.  A motion to approve the expert witness fee was made by David Prater and seconded by 
Kevin Buchanan.  The motion carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Prater, Rodriguez 
NAY: None 
ABST:  Mashburn 

 

7) DISTRICT 23 REQUEST FOR EXPERT WITNESS FEE 
 

Richard Smothermon advised this request relates to blood spatter evidence in avery complicated 
homicide.  A motion was made by David Prater to approve the request as presented and seconded 
by Mr. Mashburn.  The motion carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Prater, Rodriguez, Mashburn 
NAY: None 
ABST:  None 

 
8) CONSIDERTAION OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACT APPROVAL FOR DISTRICT 8  
 
Brian Hermanson advised he is short-staffed due to budget cuts.  One of his retired ADAs, Ed 
Goodman, is interested in working part time as a Special Assistant District Attorney.  This would 
be beneficial in that it would save Mr. Hermanson from having to pay benefits and would help 
relieve some of the caseload.  Mr. Hermanson is seeking approval from the Council to hire him. 
[See attachments.]  Mike Fields asked if Mr. Hermanson believed he met the requirements of 
215.37.  Mr. Hermanson said he felt comfortable that he does comply with the requirements.  A 



 

3 

motion was made by David Prater and seconded by Greg Mashburn to approve the hiring of a 
Special Assistant District Attorney for Mr. Hermanson.  The motion carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Prater, Rodriguez, Mashburn 
NAY: None 
ABST:  None 

 
9) IT CONSOLIDATION AND UNIFICATION REPORT 
 
Suzanne McClain Atwood reported that she attended an Interim Study on November 14th led by 
Senator Roger Thompson relating to IT Consolidation and Unification.  She said it was a really 
good interim study and she used her time to focus on the unique structure of the DA offices, how 
they are voluntary agencies and are not required to get IT services from the State, and how they 
pool resources to pay for IT services, with direct control over establishing those costs.  She rec-
ommended that DAC be exempt from the consolidation and unification project.  The immediate 
issue is the Service Agreement that DAC has been asked to sign.  Ms. Atwood said she is working 
on a counter offer to take to the Office of Management and Enterprise Services.  
 
No action was taken. 
  
10) REVIEW AND UPDATE ON OKLAHOMA COURT OF CRIMINAL APPEALS ORDER RE-

LATING TO PERSONAL IDENTIFIERS ON COURT DOCUMENTS  
 
Trent Baggett informed the Council that it had been brought to his attention that addresses are 
included in the definition of a personal identifier in the Court of Criminal Appeals Administrative 
Directive.  [See attachments.]  The Supreme Court Administrative Directive orders any document 
with that information not to be placed on the internet.  Court clerks need to be made aware of 
these provisions so they can take appropriate action relating to addresses. 
 
No action was taken. 
 
11) DEPARTMENT OF LABOR – NEW OVERTIME RULES 

 
New Department of Labor overtime rules were scheduled to become effective December 1;  
however, a Texas District Court ruling delayed implementation.  A training session was held on 
December 13 at DAC headquarters with two lawyers from McAfee & Taft, and DAC HR Officer 
Eric Sowder.  Suzanne McClain Atwood encouraged everyone to take this opportunity to review 
and analyze the exempt and non exempt status of their employees.  If anybody has any questions, 
please contact Eric Sowder in Human Resources or Ms. Atwood. 
 
No action was taken.  

 
12) DART Board Preview  

 
Elizabeth Base and James Calkins gave the Council a preview of the new District Attorneys 
Resources and Training [DART] Board site.  This will be taking the place of DAConnect.  Tip 
sheets were dissseminated. [See attachments].  The site is still a work in progress. 
 
No action was taken. 

 
13) CONSIDER PROPOSED TRAINING SCHEDULE FOR UPCOMING YEAR 

 



 

4 

Meagan Conway presented the proposed training schedule for 2017. [See attachment.]  Several 
training events were cut last year due to budget cuts, so we have attempted to expand the sched-
ule to cover some areas where training has been lacking.  A new proposal is a media training 
event, designed to educate the media on the criminal justice system.  
  
Suzanne McClain Atwood discussed the Leadership Conference scheduled for February 22-23, ad-
vising it was scheduled after several District Attorneys expressed interest.  We’ve been able to uti-
lize prosecutors as facilitators to save speaker fees.  It will be a great opportunity to improve lead-
ership skills.    
 
The Elected DA event hasn’t yet been scheduled.  Ms. Atwood advised Louisiana is willing to host  
a joint Elected DA Conference in 2017, including Oklahoma, Arkansas, Texas and Louisiana.  Ms. 
Atwood asked the Council if there was interest in attending a joint-state meeting in Louisiana.  At 
least ten people who were present said they would want to attend, so she is going to pursue 
scheduling.   
 
Ms. Atwood also pointed out her intent to offer an Advanced Trial Advocacy Training in August, 
which will be a follow-up to Prosecutor Boot Camp. 
 
No action was taken. 
 
14) CONSIDERATION OF NDAA CAPITOL CONFERENCE 

 
Mike Fields informed the Council that Oklahoma District Attorneys did not attend the conference 
last year due to budget cuts, but it had been a mainstay in the years past.  With the conference 
coming up in February, it is time to reevaluate this.  Suzanne McClain Atwood said, if approved, 
transportation costs are the responsibility of those attending, with the other costs covered by 
DAC conference funds.  The total cost to DAC for six participants would be roughly $8,400.00 at 
$1,400.00 per person.  An added benefit to going this year is the opportunity to attend the Prose-
cutors Center for Excellence National Best Practices Committee meeting on February 2.  Ms. At-
wood encourages those who go to attend the Best Practices meeting since Oklahoma is going to 
begin exploring this.   
 
A motion was made by Kevin Buchanan and seconded by Greg Mashburn to send a delegation to 
Washington D.C. for the NDAA Capitol Conference.  Before a vote was taken, David Prater sug-
gested limiting the attendees to those in leadership roles only and possibly capping the number of 
attendees due to the possibility of future budget cuts.  Discussion was held.  Kevin Buchanan 
amended his motion to allow four District Attorneys and the Executive Coordinator to attend the 
Conference utilizing DAC funds as outlined above.  Greg Mashburn seconded the amended mo-
tion.  Any others wishing to go will be responsible to pay out of their own budget.  The motion 
carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Rodriguez, Mashburn 
NAY: Prater 
ABST:  None 

 
Mr. Prater left the meeting shortly after this vote. 
 
15) PARDON AND PAROLE  
 
Richard Smothermon gave a brief summary of the work he has done on the new Narrative Form 
for the Pardon and Parole Board.  The new form, which will be found in JustWare, will be availa-



 

5 

ble once the Council approves it. [See attachments.]  Mr. Smothermon is still working on a few 
issues with the form.  Trent Baggett stressed to the Council the importance of these forms to the 
Pardon and Parole Board.  Mr. Baggett said the Pardon and Parole Board relies heavily on these 
DA Narratives and they pay close attention to them.  Mr. Baggett said they are very interested in 
whether there was a victim impact statement, whether restitution had been ordered and paid, and 
what kind of weapon, if any, was used and how it was used.  Mr. Smothermon will continue to 
work on this form and will present it at the Council meeting in January. 
 
No action was taken. 
 
16) CONSIDERATION OF BEST PRACTICES COMMITTEE 

 
Suzanne McClain Atwood stated that several states have created Best Practices Committees.  
These research and study a pending issue in the state, working to develop policy statements or 
recommended practices.  Colorado’s is very active and if Oklahoma is going to explore this, then 
attending the meeting in Washington D.C. on February 2 would be a great place to start to see 
what other states are doing. 
 
No action was taken. 
 
15)PARDON AND PAROLE  
 
After discussion of agenda item 16, it was noted that Tina Harman’s agenda item relating to par-
don and parole had not been addressed.  Ms. Harman gave an update on the electronic docket.  
Starting in September, in an effort to streamline processes with the Pardon and Parole Board, they 
began using a different system that did not work with DAC’s systems.  This resulted in an inability 
to convert the information into the easily searchable product available in Justice Webview.  The 
docket is now available online on the Pardon and Parole Board’s website, although it will be miss-
ing the investigative reports since it is a public website.  Ms. Harman will now be sending a link to 
the investigative reports to each DA in an e-mail.  Everything will still be available except mental 
health reports and substance abuse history, which have been redacted from the report after the 
Pardon and Parole Board deemed those reports are confidential.   
 
No action was taken. 
 
17) PENDING LEGAL ISSUES  
 
Suzanne McClain Atwood informed the Board of the three pending law suits against DAC.  [See 
attachments.]  All necessary documents have been submitted to Kari Hawkins, with the Attorney 
General’s office.  Ms. Hawkins is representing DAC in these matters.  There is no update on the 
status of these cases. 
 
No action was taken. 
 
18) CONSIDERATION OF HIRING PROCESS FOR SELECTION OF EXECUTIVE COORDI-

NATOR 
 
Suzanne McClain Atwood announced her retirement date to be March 1.  Ms. Atwood presented 
her notice of vacancy draft and the timeline for hiring a new Executive Coordinator.  Mr. Fields 
asked any of the elected DAs to notify him if they want to be involved in the process of selecting 
applicants for interviews and he would figure out how to allow input and participation.  Discus-
sion was held on where and how to post the notice of vacancy.  Greg Mashburn and Mr. Fields 



 

6 

would like to post it with NDAA and NAPC.  It will also be posted with OMES and internally with 
DAC.  Ms. Atwood will contact the Oklahoma Bar Association to determine if it can be posted in 
the Bar Journal before its next publication.  Kevin Buchanan suggested extending the application 
time due to the holidays.  The time for applications accepted was extended to January 5, making 
the dissemination date January 6, and the application review period January 6 to January 12.  The 
Council will schedule a Special Meeting with an Executive Session to select the applicants they 
want to interview for January 12 at 9:00 a.m.  It was suggested we make that meeting available for 
videoconference.  Three Council members will have to be on site at DAC and the others will have 
the option of joining by teleconference, as well as the other elected DAs.   
 
A motion was made by Kevin Buchanan and seconded by Greg Mashburn to approve the amend-
ed timeline for selection of an Executive Coordinator as noted above.  The motion carried as fol-
lows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Rodriguez, Mashburn 
NAY: None 
ABST:  None 

 
19) REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE COORDINATOR 
 
Suzanne McClain Atwood updated the Council with a matter that Angela Marsee is dealing with 
regarding county jail inspections.  Ms. Marsee was not notified before an inspection in one of her 
county jails and is now working on resolving that with the Health Department. 
 
Kevin Buchanan then informed the Council of some heavy financial hits his district has taken re-
cently in unused sick leave payments that he could not anticipate.  Mark Matloff has agreed to 
help Mr. Buchanan pay a portion of one of these payments, since the employee was his employee 
for some of that time.  Ms. Atwood then agreed to allow Mr. Buchanan to pay his IT user fees in 
quarterly payments instead of all at once.  Mr. Buchanan wanted everyone to be aware of the gen-
erosity and help he is receiving, as he is very grateful.  Richard Smothermon announced that other 
districts do have the freedom to contribute to other districts’ needs.  Mr. Smothermon found him-
self in a similar situation in the past and other districts helped him through that time.  Mr. 
Smothermon offered to contribute to Mr. Buchanan’s need in the amount of $10,000.00. 
 
20) NEW BUSINESS NOT KNOWN 24 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING 
 
None. 
 
21) ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion was made by Kevin Buchanan and seconded by Greg Mashburn to adjourn the meeting 
at 11:54 a.m.  The motion carried as follows: 
 

AYE: Fields, Buchanan, Rodriguez, Mashburn 
NAY: None 
ABST:  None 

 



















District Attorney Council 

FY 17 Evidence Fund

Dist Annual Allotment  Amount Drawn 

 Remaining 

Allotment 

Quarterly 

Allotment

Expert 

Expenditures

Witness 

Allotment Drawn Total Expenditures

1 $4,057.00 $1,014.25 $3,042.75 $1,014.25 $0.00 $1,014.25 $1,014.25

2 $4,325.00 $4,325.00 $0.00 1,081.25          $0.00 $4,325.00 $4,325.00

3 $6,851.00 $0.00 $6,851.00 1,712.75          $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4 $25,158.00 $0.00 $25,158.00 6,289.50          $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

5 $6,051.00 $3,025.00 $3,026.00 1,512.75          $0.00 $3,025.00 $3,025.00

6 $14,740.00 $7,370.00 $7,370.00 3,685.00          $0.00 $7,370.00 $7,370.00

7 $83,547.00 $41,773.50 $41,773.50 20,886.75        $3,145.00 $41,773.50 $44,918.50

8 $9,283.00 $0.00 $9,283.00 2,320.75          $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

9 $20,064.00 $0.00 $20,064.00 5,016.00          $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

10 $7,877.00 $2,000.00 $5,877.00 1,969.25          $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

11 $5,719.00 $3,000.00 $2,719.00 1,429.75          $750.76 $3,000.00 $3,750.76

12 $6,226.00 $6,226.00 $0.00 1,556.50          $0.00 $6,226.00 $6,226.00

13 $3,805.00 $1,902.50 $1,902.50 951.25             $0.00 $1,902.50 $1,902.50

14 $117,635.00 $25,000.00 $92,635.00 29,408.75        $10,174.00 $25,000.00 $35,174.00

15 $15,190.00 $0.00 $15,190.00 3,797.50          $3,956.57 $0.00 $3,956.57

16 $3,396.00 $1,877.00 $1,519.00 849.00             $0.00 $1,877.00 $1,877.00

17 $9,183.00 $0.00 $9,183.00 2,295.75          $1,167.26 $0.00 $1,167.26

18 $4,667.00 $2,333.50 $2,333.50 1,166.75          $0.00 $2,333.50 $2,333.50

19 $4,765.00 $4,765.00 $0.00 1,191.25          $337.50 $4,765.00 $5,102.50

20 $2,526.00 $0.00 $2,526.00 631.50             $600.00 $0.00 $600.00

21 $21,272.00 $0.00 $21,272.00 5,318.00          $2,700.00 $0.00 $2,700.00

22 $7,535.00 $4,000.00 $3,535.00 1,883.75          $0.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00

23 $2,038.00 $2,038.00 $0.00 509.50             $3,392.50 $2,038.00 $5,430.50

24 $2,094.00 $500.00 $1,594.00 523.50             $2,674.82 $500.00 $3,174.82

25 $8,277.00 $0.00 $8,277.00 2,069.25          $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

26 $998.00 $0.00 $998.00 249.50             $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

27 $9,708.00 $9,708.00 $0.00 2,427.00          $0.00 $9,708.00 $9,708.00

Totals $406,987.00 $120,857.75 $286,129.25 $101,746.75 $28,898.41 $120,857.75 $149,756.16

Witness Fee Expenses Summary

Budget $406,987.00 Budget $456,643.00

YTD Witness Fees $120,857.75 YTD Witness Fee Expenses $120,857.75

Balance $286,129.25 YTD Expert Fee Expenses $28,898.41

Balance $306,886.84

Expert Fee Expenses

Budget $49,656.00

YTD Expert Fees $28,898.41

Balance $20,757.59

January Copy of Evidence Fund FY17.xls 1/17/2017 - 11:06 AM



 1 

 
 

 

 
 

Approved 
Budget Request 

FY 2018 
 

 
 

Critical Needs As Submitted By Districts                         $11,472,284  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



District Attorneys Serving on  
Boards, Committees, and Task Forces 

 
January 2017 

DAC Active 

 
Board 

 
Representative 

 
Appointing Authority/Term 

 
Authority 

 
Term 
Ends 

 
District Attorneys 

Council 
 

 
Mike Fields 

 
 
 

     Kevin Buchanan 
 
 

       
        David Prater 

 
 
 

Greg Mashburn 
 
 

         
 

Scott Pruitt 

 
President of ODAA as elected 
by membership for one year 

term 
 

President Elect of ODAA as 
elected by membership for 

one year term 
 

Appointed by Court of 
Criminal Appeals for three 

year term 
 

Appointed by Oklahoma Bar 
Association for three year 

term 
 

          
           Attorney General 
 

 

19 O.S. §215.28 
 
7/2017 
 
 
 
7/2017 
 
 
 
6/30/2018 
(3 years) 
 
 
6/30/2018 
(3 years) 
 
 
 

 
Oklahoma 

Commission on 
Children and Youth 

 

 
Richard Smothermon 
 

 
Three recommendations 

from ODAA sent to OCCY for 
selection – three year term 
(Sent recommendation in 

June 2015) 

 
10 O.S. §601.1 

 
6/30/2018 

UVED Mike Boring 
Brian Hermanson 

Orvil Loge 
Greg Mashburn 
Angela Marsee 

ODAA Committee Appointed 
by President Fields 

 7/2017 

 
Board of Child 

Abuse Examination 
 
 

 
Trent Baggett 

 
Three recommendations 

from ODAA sent to OCCY for 
selection  

 
10 O.S. §601.30 

 
 

 
Child Abuse Training 

Coordination 
Council 

 

 
Sarah McAmis 

 
No term limitation 

Recommendations sent from 
Council 

 
63 O.S. §1-227.9 

 



District Attorneys Serving on  
Boards, Committees, and Task Forces 

 
January 2017 

 
Oklahoma Bureau 
of Narcotics and 
Dangerous Drug 

Control Commission 

 
Greg Mashburn 

 
Appointed by Governor and 

approved by Senate for 
seven year term 

 
63 O.S. §2-

104.1 

 

 
Oklahoma State 

Bureau of 
Investigation 
Commission 

 

 
Mike Boring 

 
Appointed by Governor and 
approved by the Senate for 

seven year term 

 
74 O.S. §150.3 

 

 
Child Death Review 

Board 
 

 
Susan Caswell 

 

 
2 years 

Appointed by Council 

 
10 O.S. §1150.2 

 

 
Domestic Violence 
& Fatality Review 

Board 
 
 

 
Jeff Smith 

 
2 years 

Appointed by Attorney 
General 

(Sent recommendations in 
May 2015) 

 
22 O.S. §1601 

 
6/30/2015 

 
Dispute Resolution 

Advisory Board 
 
 

 
 

 
1 year 

Appointed by State 
Supreme Court 

3 Recommendation 
nominated by Council – 
(Sent to them 12/16/14) 

 

 
12 O.S. § 1803 

 
6/30/2015 

 
Justice Assistance 

Grant Board  
(JAG) 

 

 
Richard 

Smothermon 
 
 

Rob Barris 
 

 
Executive Coordinator or 
designee per JAG Rules 

 
Appointed by Council 

(Active May 2014) 

 
 

 

 
Technology 
Committee 

 
 
 

 
Brian Hermanson, 

Chair 
Max Cook 

Greg Mashburn 
Kenny Wright 

Jason Hicks 
Richard 

Smothermon 
Laura Austin Thomas 

 
         Appointed by Council 

  



District Attorneys Serving on  
Boards, Committees, and Task Forces 

 
January 2017 

State Council for 
Interstate Juvenile 
Supervision 

Chris Boring Appointed by Executive 
Coordinator on May 23, 

2016 

 3 year term 

 

DAC Inactive 

 
Board 

 
Last 

Representative 

 
Term 

 
Authority 

 
Term Ends 

 
Sentencing 

Commission 
 

 
John Wampler 

 
5 Years 

 
22 O.S. §1502 

 

 
Foster Care System 
Improvement Task 

Force 
 

 
Emily Redman 

   

 
 

Strategic Funding 
Committee  

 
 
 

 
 

Mike Boring, Chair 
Mike Fields 

Kevin Buchanan 
Chris Boring 

Greg Mashburn 
 

 
 

Appointed by Council Chair 

  

 
Indian Child Welfare 

Act 

    

 
Civil Asset Forfeiture  
 
 
 

 
Mike Fields, Chair 
Greg Mashburn 

Matt Ballard 
Mike Boring 

Scott Rowland 
 

 
Appointed by Council 

  

 

























Background: 
On September 15th, 2016 Suzanne McClain Atwood introduced Michael P. Neylon, with the 
Criminal Justice Information Services Division of the FBI in Clarksburg, West Virginia. Mr. 
Neylon delivered a presentation regarding the National Data Exchange Program (N-DEx), a 
national information sharing system that enables criminal justice agencies to search, link, and 
analyze local, state, tribal, and federal records. 
 
Mr. Neylon showed a short video, then a PowerPoint. Many benefits of the N-DEx program were 
discussed, including the nature of records kept within the database and the fact that it is offered 
at no-cost to participants.  
 

 Chris Boring asked if the search in N-DEx would take the place of the Triple-I search 
already being conducted within his offices. Mr. Neylon said no, it would not take the 
place of that. But with specially granted permissions, an N-DEx search would perform 
the Triple-I search at the same time. If the searches are performed separately, the N-
DEx search would be supplemental to the Triple-I search, as it would contain information 
the Triple-I search would not. 

 Mike Boring asked if the N-DEx search would be supplemental to the deconfliction 
process already being used in his office. Mr. Neylon stated that this would help in a 
collaborative way by connecting agencies that might be looking into the same individual. 

 Greg Mashburn asked how he could get access, whether it would be on an individual 
basis or if it would be as a system. Mr. Neylon stated that it could be done either way. 
Mr. Neylon concluded by offering to share additional information after the meeting with 
anyone interested who was with a criminal justice agency. 

 
A motion was made by Greg Mashburn and seconded by Kevin Buchanan for DAC to begin 
discussion on how they could implement a system-wide participation with the N-DEx system.  
 
 
 
Report: 
DAC IT has been actively working with Mr. Neylon and his team to examine what information in 
JustWare can be shared with the N-Dex system, including coordinating with Journal 
Technologies to provide the structure of a JustWare Database so that the N-Dex team could 
see the kinds of data that can be stored in JustWare. 
 
Along the way we entered into a discussion regarding the OSBI submissions that get then get 
submitted to the FBI. It turns out the data that OSBI uploads to the FBI goes to a different 
division that does not share to the N-Dex program, and even if it did the information that OSBI 
submits may not contain all the info we supply to OMES. 
 
The FBI N-Dex team would like for the Council to approve sending the same information that we 
send to OSBI directly to the FBI N-Dex system. Specifically: 
 

 Action Code - Indicates if this record is to be "A" added or "R" correct a previously 
submitted record. 

 Record Type - Indicates whether the record is a Filing (Type 1) or a Disposition (Type 
2). 

 Originating Agency ID - The 9-character Agency Identifier of the District Attorney's 
Office submitting the data. 



 Court Case # - Court Case Number of charge filed or disposed.   

 OTN -  Offender Tracking Number on the OSBI fingerprint card and should be supplied 
by the arresting agency.  This number is used to link the filing/disposition record to the 
OSBI Criminal History File. 

 Date of Arrest - Date of arrest from fingerprint card. 

 Name - Defendant's name, last name, first name, middle name/initial.  No space 
between the last name and the comma or between the comma and the first name. (look 
at NCIC STANDARD) 

 Date of Birth - Defendant's birthdate.  If unknown, the submitting agency must estimate 
and enter year without month and day.   

 Race - Race of the defendant. (W, B, I, A, U). 

 Gender - Sex of the defendant. (M, F, U). 

 SSN -  Social Security Number of the defendant. 

 GOC - General Offense Character.  Use this field to indicate After Former Conviction of 
a Felony - "V" and Attempt To Commit - "A".  Use this field only if the statute literal in the 
statute table does not indicate after former conviction or attempt to commit.  

 Charge - Statute Code.  See enclosed Statute Code Table.                    

 Original Charge - Originally filed charge.  See enclosed Statute Code Table.  

 Counts - The number of counts for a given offense. 

 Felony Flag - Felony or Misdemeanor Charge (F or M). 

 Controlled Substance - This is for Drug Abuse Charges only.  See enclosed Controlled 
Substance Code Table. 

 Filing date - Date charge was filed. 

 Hearing Type - See Hearing Code Table. 

 Disposition - See Court Disposition Code Table.  Use "398, CHARGE FILED" for all 
Filing records. 

 Disposition Date - Date of court appearance. 

 Reason - Reason for dismissal or charge reduction.  See Reason Code Table. 

 Prosecutor - Enter last name of Prosecutor. 

 Judge - Enter last name of Judge. 

 Restitution Amt - Amount of restitution to the nearest dollar. 

 Fine Amt - Enter total fine to the nearest dollar. 

 Deferred Sentence - Total length of a deferred sentence in years and days. 

 Deferred Date - End date of deferred sentence.  

 Prison Sentence - Total length of prison sentence in years and days. 

 Jail Sentence - Total length of jail sentence in years and days. 

 Suspended Sentence - Total time of sentence suspended in years and days. (Prison or 
Jail). 

 Court Provisions - Disposition further explaining the disposition.  See Disposition Code 
Table. 

 Court Provision Literal - A literal provided to explain the disposition when a code does 
not exist for disposition. 

 Conviction Flag - Flag used to indicate if the person is convicted of a felony or 
misdemeanor (F or M).  Leave blank if no conviction is made. 

 
There will be a "Source Data Administrator" (or SDA) Role at DAC that will have control of the 
specific policies set that limit the types information we upload that can be shared, as well as 
who will have access to it. 



 
 

HISTORICAL PICTURE 
 

OKLAHOMA CRIME VICTIMS 
COMPENSATION PROGRAM 

 

Created by Suzanne Breedlove 
September, 2016 

 

 



2 
 

 

 

2000000

2500000

3000000

3500000

4000000

4500000

5000000

5500000

6000000

6500000

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

State Compensation Cash Balance FY 09

State Compensation Cash Balance FY 10

State Compensation Cash Balance FY 11

State Compensation Cash Balance FY 12

State Compensation Cash Balance FY 13

State Compensation Cash Balance FY 14

State Compensation Cash Balance FY 15

State Compensation Cash Balance FY 16

HISTORICAL LOOK AT FUND 230 BALANCES BY MONTH & FY 

Chart combines balances of state and federal funds at the end of each month. 

 

 



3 
 

 

0

2000000

4000000

6000000

8000000

10000000

12000000

FY 09 FY 10 FY 11 FY 12 FY 13 FY 14 FY 15 FY 16

Average Victims Compensation Fund Balance FY 09 - FY 16 

Chart combines average balances from state and federal funds. 

 



4 
 

 

5100000

5200000

5300000

5400000

5500000

5600000

5700000

5800000

5900000

FY 12 FY 13 FY 14 FY 15 FY 16

State Victims Compensation Revenue 



5 
 

 

0

500000

1000000

1500000

2000000

2500000

3000000

FY 12 FY 13 FY 14 FY 15 FY 16

ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS AND VICTIM/WITNESS SERVICES 



6 
 

 

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

3,500,000

4,000,000

4,500,000

5,000,000

FY
93

FY
94

FY
95

FY
96

FY
97

FY
98

FY
99

FY
00

FY
01

FY
02

FY
03

FY
04

FY
05

FY
06

FY
07

FY
08

FY
09

FY
10

FY
11

FY
12

FY
13

FY
14

FY
15

FY
16

24 YEAR VCA HISTORY 

2000 Problems getting VCA payments due to 

Supreme Court Network problems 

1993 Municipal VCA's 

added for A&B and DUI

1996 Assessment minimums 

increased by $10 

2001 Supreme Court Network 

problems resolved 

2001 Assessment minimums 

increased by $10 



7 
 

 

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

1
9

9
3

1
9

9
4

1
9

9
5

1
9

9
6

1
9

9
7

1
9

9
8

1
9

9
9

2
0

0
0

2
0

0
1

2
0

0
2

2
0

0
3

2
0

0
4

2
0

0
5

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
7

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
9

2
0

1
0

2
0

1
1

2
0

1
2

2
0

1
3

2
0

1
4

2
0

1
5

2
0

1
6

24 YEAR AWARD HISTORY 










